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Report on Standalone Financial Statements

We have auaited the accompanying standalone financial statemenis of "31 Iniotecn BHQO |
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheel as at 31st March, 2018, the Stalemant of Pre't ang
{including other comprenensive income), Statement of Cash Flows and the Statemen! of Chanuas

for the year then ended and a summary of significant accouniing policies anpa other
Mmformaton

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

I he Company‘s Board of Directors 1s responsitle for the matters staled in Section 134(5) of the Compames
Act 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these slantdalone financial statements that give a
true ard farr view of the financial position. financiai performance including other comprehensive income
sh liws and cnanges in equity of the Company in accordance with the the Indian Accounting Stancaros

¢ A% piescribed under Section 133 of tne Act, read with the Companies fIndian Accountirg Stanaard;

A

:5 7015 as amended, and other accounling principles generally accepled in |"Wd\d

s responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounling records In accerdance wiln the

provis.ens of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for _:.-._venm; any delecling frawds
anc olner rregulantes selection and apphcalion of approprate accounting policies making juogm t* s &

est'miles thal are reasonable ana prudent and design impiementilion and mamneraroe ol adoa.se
ternal fnancal conirols  thal wera operating effectively lor ersunng the acouracy ano compieleress o
the accounling records, relevant 1o the preparation ard presentaticr of the sianpalone hirancial staomers

ihat give a true and fair view and are free from materiai misstaternent! wnether duc 1o fraud or error
Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsipility 1s to express an opinicn on these standalone financial staicments based on our audi

We nave taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and maliers
which are required to be included In the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rulcs mane
therc undcr and the Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

We canducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audiung specified under Section 143(10) of
‘ho Act Tnose Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and perform the audd
o ophi=r oreasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are frae from matera
Tusslatemeant

An acdii involves performing procedures {o obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and tre discfosures in
tne standalane financial statements The procedures selecled depend on the audilor's udq'nwl InciLaang
re assessment of the nsks of malerial misstatement of the standalone financial slatwmerts wrsiier doc
lo fradd or error In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers inlgrnas hnancia! contrnl ralevant
lo the Company's preparation of the standalone financial slatements thal give a rud ant 18 0 visw 1 G uds

to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances

An audt also includes evaluatng the appropriateness of thc accounting policies uscd &rd e
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company s Directors, as well as evaluating ne
overall preseniation of the standalone financial slatements

We beleve that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis for ou
audt opimon con the standalone financial statements

Opinion

r opimon and to the best of our information and according to the explanalions gwven o us, the
;a1d standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the marner s¢
¢ and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principics genara ly accepieo
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ir India of the hinancial position of the Company as al 31st March 2018.2nd its Inancial nerforman oo
including ether comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in eguity for (he year cnded o
lhat date

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2016 ("the Order ) @sued by it
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of {2 Act we give o
the "Annexure A’ statement on the matlers specilied in paragraphs 3 ang 4 uf the Orger, u
tne extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(4)

el

(g

We nave soughl and obtained ai the wformation and explanations wiven o e besi of
ol knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audid

in our opinion, proper books of account as required oy law have been kept oy e
ompany so far as appears from our examination of those books,

Ir Balance Sheet, Slatement of Pro' tand Loss (Inc udmg olher comprehens v noare,
» Statemenl Cash Flow and Satemeant of C S gty el owe e oy ores Ay
arc in agreement with the books ul account,

(n our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply wiir me ingwn
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Aczt,

Cn the basis of the writlen representations recewved from (he directors as on ’3‘r " Marr
2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none af thie ¢rreclars s disgualhizd as oi
317 March, 2018, from being appeinted as a direclor in terms of Section 184(2) of the S

With respect lo adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporing of the
Company and the operating effectiveness ol such conlrols, refer to our separate reporl 1n
‘Arnexure BY, and

I our opinion and to the best of our infermation and accoriing 10 1he explanatinns gvan
1o us we report as under with respect to other matlers 1o be incuded n tne Avcier s
Repon .1 accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audil and Auailars) Ruies 2014

I ing Company has disclosed ine impact of penaing igations on s [naErcit sosioen
in is standalone financial slatemenis. Reler Nole Mo 25 e 1ne stanuzmng fipanc:
statements

i The Company has made provision. as required under lhe aogicable lw g
accounling slandard, for material foreseeable losses if any, on long wrm conjracts

i There has been no delay in transferring amounts which were required to e transoy ¢d
lo the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company

For GV & Comepessg

Charlered Accountants

S. Maheshwari '\l-*"

Dt
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Hoepistration No: 103425wW

rbiershio No. 38755 =~

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: Apnl 20, 2018




ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGUALTORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OQUR REPORT TQO THE MEMBERS QF "THE COMPANY”™
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Or the vasis of sucre cnecks as we considered appropriate and accerding to the infermation and
cxmanahions given lo us aunng the course of our audil. we state that

a Tne Company has manlained proper recoros shoewing 'l parigulars
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

by Dunrg the year, the Company in accordance lo a phased 2roQramime a5 ohys cally
verified all the fixed assets which 10 our opinion, s reasonable consider ng e si7e of e
Company and nalure of its fixed assets Tne discrepancies noliced 1in sach venficahen
have been property within the bocks of accounis

o According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of exammnalion of
{he records of the Company, the Company does nol hold any mmovalis propeny
refore paragraph 3 [1) (c)1s not applicable

u s the Company is a service Company, pnimarily rendering BRO services Nocormngly it ooes
ol loid any physical inventories durning Lhe year T'nus paragrapn 3l of the Oroer s nu
applcabte 1o the Company

2l Tre Company has granted loans 1n the previous years 1o one body carporale covared o e
register maintamned under sechon 189 of the Act

ar Ourng the year the Company nas not granied any oQns  Soolredd or onserg red o
companies firms, Limted Liabity Fartnersmps ar Gther parios coversd i i rinla)
maintained under section 182 of the Act,. Accordingly paragraph 302y of tne Oreern s not
apptcable.

2 In respect of the existing loan outstanding. the loan s repayahle on gemanu

@ orespect of existing loans outstanding, there 1s no amount which was overgue guring e

yirar
I In our opinion and according to the information and explanatcns given lo us the Somoany
nas not advanced any loan, provided guarantee and secunty covercd 1 Secton TEb af 11
Act Tne Company has complied with the provisiors of seclion 186 af the At to 1np exie!
appucable. wn respect 10 the lcans and investmenls made guaranfocos gwven n0n seounmn
Bovicedq
I e Company has not accepted deposits from public witnin the meaning of dientves 5s0L

oy RB! (Reserve Bank of India) and Seciiens 73 1o 78 or any olner raievan: provisic s of e
Actlana rules framed there under

(Wl The Cenlral Government has not prescribed the mamienance of cosl reeords oS Seot al
148 (1) of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company Al
3{w) of the Order 15 not apphcable

[P
=

a According to the information and explanatons given to us and on the basis of
examination of records, the Company is generally regular in depositing amournts
deducted! accrued in respecl cf undisputed statutory dues rmcluding provigent Tung
rcome tax, sales tax value added lax, duty of cusicms, sarvice tex QO0US [1nl service
ax cess and other malenal statutory dues As exglained 1o us the Comipany ¢l nol have
any dues on accourt of employees’ state insurance and dulies of cxcise




According to the informalion and explanations given to us and »n thae basis of
examination of records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payaoie n respent of
provident fund, income tax sales tax, value added tax. duty of customs, service tax
goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March
31 2018 for a pericd more than six months frem the oate they became payabnle

by According {o ne information and explanations given lc us, there are no cues of oo
Tax Sales lax, Service Tax, Duty of Custems, Duty of [xcise, gends tind §ervce 'ax o

Value added Tax which have not been deposied on @ucount of any Gizpute ceouat
fallowing

Maime of Statute ' Nature of Period to which AmountIn Rs  Farum where dispuis
Demand _amount Relates ‘is pending

Employees

Empioyees State Siat — < Ble i s
Ve, Gk | State Financial Year 20086- s Hazan Caan, New
sulance Act, iy 07 5,47 .402 Yalf

e | Esicy : S

~ cCommissicnar of
9.62.276 |Income Tax Appeals

ncome Tax Act, | T ssessment Year
1987 _ 2010-11

Assessment Year - Commesaner al

2011-12 3486018 “ncame Tax Anpeals

reeme Tax Act, : . Assessment Year
Incéme Tax |?OM_‘5

icome Tax Act . -
Income Tax

Corrmussonoer of
nconie T ax Appeals

i Az per Supplementary Restructuring Agreement in terms of Dabt | EUFINg f I
Master Restructuring Agreement dated March 30, 2072 held boiwesn L IntomEon

nolding company and the lenders, dues repayable to a fiinancial mshiluten by the Lo pony

nad recognized in the holding company and i respect of dues repayable fo panks hsie g
wrelays The Company does not have any dues to the Sovermmon: or Dehoan e [=Th

{11 The Cempany did not raise any money by way of initial pubiic Gifer ¢ funbes public oifer
unciuding debt instruments) during the year or in the recent nast Hazed oo e afonmating
ind explanations given to us by the Managernent term Inans weare appled 1o i
whnclh the lnans were obtained

T Ourng e course of our examination of the beoks zno records af W Com ey L eg e
iccordance with the generally accepted auditing ordctces o mnthia Zod S0 oncmg o
rfermation and explanations given te us we have nenlher come aolosz: any ot it fi
by or on the Company by s officers or employees noticed or reqaartod diisg the pear
vAve we beer informed of such case by the Managetei

il I'he Uampany has not paciiprovided any managenar rematiaraton Theled BHAe Sl
the Clroer 1s rot applicable to the Comparny

Actarding to the information and explanations qvan tc us, the Comosay "ol .a Mt
soirpany Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xu) of the Grder are not anplical = o e
JmEaEny

o Aocording to infarmabien and explananons givern bs and sased o ow 2samnat ol 1
vords ol the Company, all wransactions with the reflated parhics an: 00 o ancs with

eclions 177 and 188 of the Act and detaiis af such fransactans bigve been disalosan n fha
I aly Financial Statements as raoguired by Ind AS 24 Redated Pary Disclosgras apeci=d




ihe Ind AS Financral Statements

V) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement =t snares ar fully
ar parlly convertible debentures during the year Therefore the provisions of ciavss “oxn o
IMe Drder arz not applicable to the Company.

a sccording toonformation and explanations given to us and hased an our exami
records of the Company the Company has not entereg inio any nap-cash frans
lirectars ar pefsons connected with lim. Accordingly paragraph 3 (xv) ol the Drder s e

AppiEatie

vk Fhe Larmmpany s not required o be registerad under sectiom [ 1he Haservs Bank o
frdia Act 1834 Accordmgly paragrapn 3 (wwil of the Order 12 not apphcab)

For GMJ & Comspemy
Chartered Accountants
Fim Regisiration No 103429W
€ A h A
"I!P_'_’ ah AN .f{:- ?",-_. | ".'_r!n'.ll"‘.l-
S. M,éheshwari W= _' L ]
Pa”"’n’..‘ "_I > - o rol r __f.
Mermbarsnio No 38755 ! L

Place. Nay: Mummbat
Dawe: Aoy 20, 2018




"ANNEXURE B”
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 31 Infotech BPG Linntea
(“thr Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS
o Statemoents of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Ihe Company’s management is responsible for establishing andg malitarang nteoea Daan.,
contrals nased on e nternal control over financial reparting crnena estaplsbaod oy o Ty
cunsidening the cssenta! components of imternal control stated in the Guidarce Mote on Aol 2!
nternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute ¢! Charterng Accauntants
of India (ICA!). These responsibdities include the design, iniglementation ong marlpogoce o
adequale internal financial controls that were operating offectvely for ensuring the aromly o
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safiguarding of 1ty
4ssels, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compreleness of the
accournting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as regulzeo under
tho Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our rospoansibility is 10 express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrels over financa
1cport g pased on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance wilh tne Cultdarne Aote on
Audit of Imernal binancial Contrels Over rinancial Reparting {the "Gudance Nols") and e
Stendasids on Auditing deemed o e prescribed under sceobion TA3T00 o thie Ao, L e cale
apghcable to an audh of internal financial controls, both applicable 1o an audit of ctoren! Yagnc
controls and botnh issued by the ICAlL Those Standards and the Guidanse Note require thar we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabile assurdnee
about whether adegquate internal financial controls eover financial reporting was ostatlished and
naintained and if such controls opeorated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit cvidence aboul the adecuary of 4
imternal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
aucht of interna!l financial controls over financiai reporting included obtaining an understanding of
rlernal financial cantrols over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a maoterial weakness exisls,
ard testing and cvaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internat contro! Lased on b
dsstunird risk The procedures selecied depend on the auditors’ [ddpment, including e aaasnusment
of the nisks of material misstatement of the Standalone IndAS Finangial Statemoents, whother due o
fravd v arror

Woe briieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 2ad appropriate to proviee 2 by
for oure audll opinlon on the Company's internal financial controls syslom Gy Linanal co e

]
A




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting s a process designed 1o provide
reasonaoie assurance reparding the reliability of financial reporting and the propariion o
Standuiene Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with pencrally acrepus
aucogning princplos. A Company's internal firancial control aver financa! repocting ni oo thoan
policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the mantenance of records that, n ressonable ditl
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions ol Lhe assers of the Company,
(2)provide reasonable assurance Lhat transactions are recorded as necessary Lo perinl propatsi

of Slandalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance wilth generally accepled accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being rmade only in accordance
with adthorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide rieasonanie
assurance regarding prevention or Limely detection of unauthorised acquisition, une, or disposilo
ol the Company's assets that could have a malerial effect on the Standalone ind AS Financl

Siatements.

‘mherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporrting

[ P
Hoecause gf

the innerent limitations of internal financial conlrols oves franonal sopostnge,
the possinility of collusion or improper management override of controls, diaterdl misstaiemer:s

rrun 1o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of gny cweo Letan ol
miurnal financial controls over financial reporting to luture periods are sLbioct Lo the @b L
internal financial control over financial reporung may become inedequate aecause of ¢hanpes e

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procetuies may dotsio ol
Opinion

in our opinicn, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financisl controls
systen aver financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporiing were
cperating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internzl contrel over Tlancldl ropartong
Cotera ostablisted by the Company considering the essential components of internal contron state

e Guidance Mote on Audit of tnternal Financial Controls Over Financia! Reporting issued by tie
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For GMY & Co sy
Crartered AcLountants
Firm Registration No: 103429W

~~

[ i
,'_:-_'L-_- -‘t_\\_/

/
Sanjeécv. Maheshwari
Partner

Wiorrhership No 38755

Place: vavi Mumban
Date: Apnl 20, 2018




31 INFOTECH BPQO LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

{Amount in INR)

Particulars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
(&} Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1,696,070 3,509,296
{b) Financial Assets
{i) Loans 4 6,700,000 6,700,000
{in} Other Financiat Assets 4 - 183,999
{c) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 5 14,341,000 10,329,000
{d) Other Non-Current Assets 6 77,764,278 61,935,570
100,501,348 82,657,865
Current assets
a4} Hinancial Assets
{i] Trade Receivables 7 30,928,924 24,762,824
|1} Lash and Cash Equivalents 8 31,315,640 10,857,006
{li1} Bank Balances Cther 1han (i) above S
() Leans q - 38,659
(v) Other Financial Assets 4 152,604,689 134,648,550
(b} Other Current Assets ) 264,564,070 360,684,078
479,413,323 531,091,117
TOTAL 579,914,671 613,748,982
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
|&} Equity Share capital 10 1,000,000 1,000,000
1) Other tquity 11 405,379,682 396,377,178
Total Equity 406,379,682 397,377,178
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
{(a} Provisions 12 6,878,145 4,850,688
6,878,145 4,850,688
Current Liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
(i} Trade Payables 13
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 118,317,161 175,750,491
{ii} Other Financial Liahilities 14 15,426,559 19,753,803
{b) Other Current Liabilities 15 31,392,463 14,929,527
[c} Frovisions 12 1,520,621 1,047,255
166,656,844 211,521,116
TOTAL 579,914,671 613,748,982
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 36
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board
For GMJ & CO
Chartered Accountants f-—__—__;‘_-:{,_\
F.R 9. 103429W s 20 'x-%
1 < X
ey i i s AN N
f \Y i ! AL \ w
/ —] (5| PR Na. |5
5. Maheshwari I";- 22\ 402 / Ajay Kumar
Partner Wl Director
M.No.: 38755 DIN: 05282942 DIN:07652605
Navi Mumbai Navi Mumbai

Drate : April 20,2018

1ofaz
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31INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{Amount in INR)

Particutars Notes 2017-18 2016-17
REVENUE
ivenue from operations {net) 16 417,819,260 432,202,820
Other income 17 20,017,672 17,973,879
Total Revenue {I) 437,836,932 450,176,699
EXPENSES
Employee benefits expense 18 222,677,610 259,547,853
Cost of third party products and services 19 164,047,407 131,176,717
Finance costs 20 237,625 {234,682}
Depreciation and amortization expense 21 2,284,787 4,065,563
Other expenses 22 40,803,459 51,850,158
Taotal Expenses {li) 430,050,932 446,405,609
Profit/(loss) before excepl.ibnal items and tax (1-11} 7,786,000 3,771,090
Feceptional lters -
Profit/{loss) before tax 7,786,000 3,771,090
Tax expense:
Lurrent tax 2,130,000 2,207,000
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier perlods [512,717) {244,321)
Deferred tax (3,629,729) {696,429)
Profit/({loss) for the period 5,798,446 2,504,840
A, Other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement of gains (tosses} on defined benefit plans (1,178,213) 3,101,951
Income tax effect 382,271 (1,006,429)
B. Other Comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit and loss in -
subsequent periods
Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (795,942) 2,095,522
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX 9,002,504 4,600,362
Earnings per share for profit attributable to equity shareholders 23
Basic EPS 58 25
Dilluted EPS 98 25
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 36
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board
For GMJ & CO b
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 103429W
i
ey
.- 8
5. Maheshwari Ajay Kumar
Partner Director
M.No.: 38755 DIN: 0582942 DIN:07652605
Navi Mumbai Navi MLmbai

Date : April 20,2018

2 of 42
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{Amount in INR}

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit/{Loss) before income tax from: 7,786,000 3,771,090
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amaortisation expense 2,284,787 4,065,563

Remeasurement of gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (1,178,213) 3,101,951

Interest income (19,858,879) {18,191,010)

Allowance for doubtful debts and advances {261,699) 6,614,165

Finance costs 150,575 {582,954}

Net foreign exchange differences 74,964 39,339
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

{Increase)/Decrease in trade receivabies (8,125,407) 22,172,323

Increasef{decrease} in trade payables (57,473,330) 46,587,105

{Increase} in other financial assets (1,690,309) 19,478,264

{Increase) in other current assets 96,120,008 (78,495,216)

Increase/{decrease) in other financial liability {4,327,206) 6,071,616

Increase in employee benefit obligations 2,500,783 (2,946,427}

Increase in other current liabitities 16,461,178 {17,034,894)
Cash generated from operations 32,463,252 {5,349,085)
Less: Income taxes paid {213,666,190) 16,075,023
Net Cash from / (used in) Operating Activities before Exceptional item 18,797,062 10,725,939
Exceptional ltem - -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 18,797,062 10,725,939
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments for property, plant and equipment {471,560} (1,273,110)

Interest received 2,033,132 1,268,911
Net cash outflow from investing activities 1,561,572 [4,199)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds / {Repayment) from / to borrowings - (11,055,716)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities - (11,055,716)
Netl increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 20,358,634 {333,976)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 10,957,006 11,290,982
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the year 31,315,640 10,957,006

Note:

1.The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in IND AS 7 on "Statement of
Cashflow " notified by the Companies Act ,2013.

2.Previous year's figures have been regrouped /rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 to 36

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the board

For GMJ & CO

Chartered Accountants e

F.R.Np, 103429W A ¢
)

r .,
ey A % MUN W\ SN ||ﬁ TP
S, :?éhesh ari WA\ 103429 i ||Ir~: ;" | Ajay Bumar
Partner p . WE P Director
b o L A% r
M.No.: 38755 = N e DIN:07652605
\\a._‘_r t‘ip_',f"
Navi Mumbai : Navi Mumbai

Date : Aprii 20,2018

Date : April 20,2018
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

Equity Share Capital

(Amount in INR}

Particulars

Balance at the
Beginning of the
period

Changes in Equity
share capital during
the year

Balance at the end of
the period

March 31, 2017
Numbers
Armnount

March 31, 2018
Numbers
Amount

100,000
1,000,000

100,000
1,000,000

100,000
1,000,000

100,000

1,000,000

Other Equity

(Amount in INR)

Reserves and Surplus

) Securfties Premium . . .
Particulars Retained Earnings Total other equity
Reserve
As at March 31, 2016 507,475,152 (115,698,336} 391,776,816
Protit for the period - 2,504,840 2,504,840
QOther comprehensive income - 2,085,522 2,095,522
Total comprehensive income for the period - 4,600,362 4,600,362
As at March 31, 2017 507,475,152 (111,097,974) 396,377,178
Profit for the period - 9,798,446 9,798,446
Other comprehensive income - {795,942) (795,942)
Total comprehensive income for the period - 9,002,504 9,002,504
As at March 31, 2018 507,475,152 {102,095,470) 405,379,682
Significant Accounting Palicies and Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1 (o 36

As per our report of even date attached

For GMI & CO
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 103429W
)

..J-L P | "
S. r:"l(cheshwari
Partner
M.No.: 38755

Navi Mumbaj
Date : April 20,2018
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Carporate Information

i infotech BPQ Limited (referred to as “the Company”) is a engaged in Business process outsourced service.

e Campany s a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India.The registered office of the company is tocated at
b -1, Lower Ground Floor Jhandewala Extension New Delhi -110055

[he financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on
April 20,2018.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted with effect from April
1,2016 Indian Accounting 5tandards (referred to as “Ind AS")notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013.

Basis of preparation
Ihese financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values at the end ef each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
genesally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
tne management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities,
disclosures relating to centingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expense for the periods presented.

[siemates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the
carrying ameunts of assets and liahilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives

of property, plant and eguiprent, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities.

(i) 1mpairment of investments
The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is
alr indication for impairment. if the recoverabte amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted
for

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
rEassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

(iii} Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the
same has been explained under Note 5
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

liv) Provisions and Contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a resulf of past event and it is probable that an

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a rebable estimate can be made.
Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated absences) are not discounted to its present value and are
determined based on hest estimate reguired to settle the obligation at the Balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
Balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not recognised In the

financial statements. A contingent asset in neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Revenue Recognition
The Company earns primarlly from providing Transaction services.

fevenue from transaction services and other service contracts is recognized based on transactions processed or manpower
teployed.

Interest / Dividend Income

Dwvidend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised using the effective
Interest method.

Leases

(i) Finance lease
Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as a lessee, where the Company has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalised at the incaption of the lease at the lower of
the fair value or the present value of the minimum lease payments and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount.
Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost s0 as to obtain a constant periodic rate of
interest on the outstanding liability for each year.

(i)  Operating lease
Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are
recognised as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognised on a straight line basis over the lease term in the
statement of profit and loss, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of inflation.

Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their nature.

The costs of the Company are broadly categorised in employee benefit expenses, cost of third party products and services,
finance costs ,depreciation and amortisation and other expenses. Employee benefit expenses include employee compensation,
#llowances paid, contribution to various funds and staff welfare expenses. Cost of third party produrts and services mainly
ciuoe purchase of software licenses and products ,fees to external consultants ,cost of running its facilities, cost of equipment
and other operating expenses. Finance cost includes interest and other borrowing cost. Other expenses is an aggregation of
cosls which are individually not material such as commission and brokerage, printing and stationery ,communication, repairs and
mantenance etc.

Foreign currency
The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee (INR).

Foresgn currency transactions are transtated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the

Iransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in

Statement of profit or loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future
s considered as a part of the entity’s net investment in that foreign operation.

./K"(;-.'_ —
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss,
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis
within other gains/(losses).

Non monelary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are not retransfated.

Mo monetary items thal are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
wher the fair value was determined

Income taxes

Current income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
sthontes, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the

reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income,

Lurrent income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
niher comprehensive income or in equity}. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactien either in
QCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect te situations in which
applicable tax reguiations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Aitvanice taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the Balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and
[ncome 1ax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying units intends 1o settle the asset and
liatmhey on a net bas:s.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognised using the Balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and habilities and their carrying amount,
gxcept when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transaction that is not a
tusiness combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transacticn.

Deferred income tax asset are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each regerting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
loriger probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years m which the temporary differences are expected to be received or settled.

Upferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
ritlisdant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and fiabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the 1ax laws in India, which is likely to give
future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future economic tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised
as deferred tax asset in the Balance sheet when the asset-can be measured reliably and 11 15 probable that the future economic
benefil associated with the asset will be realised.

The Company recognises interest levied and penalties related to income tax assessments in finance costs.

%0
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31 INFOTECH 8PO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

{i)

(it)

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
Ihat are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the
date ot purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash eguivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
lor withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised inttially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or 10ss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
asiels that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits te purchase ¢r sell the

558l

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amaunt outstanding.

Afrer initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR} method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivahbles.

- Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FYTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:
{a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and
(b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income {OCI). However, the group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or {0ss in the Profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the eguity to Profit and loss.

Interest earned whilst holding FVTOC! debt instrument is reported as interest income using the £IR method.

- Debtinstrument at FVTPL
FVTPL 15 a residual category for debt instruments, Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is ciassified as at FVTPL.
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOC|
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election 1s allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or
recogmition mconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

- Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading

and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which ind AS103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument

by- Instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair vaiue changes on the instrument,

excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of

investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Interest in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are accounted at cost.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where appticable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets} is primarily
cserecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

- The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and etther (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rnights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset 1o the extent of the Company’s continuing invelvement. In that case,
the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the nights and obligations that the Company has retained,

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to
FEDEY.

Impairment of financial assets
e Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOC) debt instruments. The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whether there has been a significant
ncrease in credit risk. Note 28 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments,
w-"-u,,'.j-:lzqmros expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

(iif)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging Instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts,
financial guarantee contracis.

Subsequent measurement
Thie measurement of financial habilities depends on their classification, as described below:

- Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Fimancial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss jnclude financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon nitial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
traomg if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This categery also includes derivative
financial mstruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationshups as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or lasses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liatnlities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
nirial date of recognition, and anly if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value
gans/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently
iransferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial
lianility as at fair value through profit and loss.

- Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR methad. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and toss.

- Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that reguire a payment to he made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109

and the amount recognised less cumulative amaortisation.
=Y & :
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31 INFOTECH BPQ LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
exisling lability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
sability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

(vi) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reciassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which
are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected 1o be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in
the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases
to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
iullbwing the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, lasses {including
mpairment gains or losses) or interest.

[v) Offsetting of financial instruments
financal assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceabie legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settie ¢n a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Property, plant and equipment

Freennld land 1s carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less

depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
de transfers from equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property,

plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amgunt or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is

probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be

measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All

at*er repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives adopted by Company

. Useful Lives
Useful lives .
Category of Assets adopted b prescribed under
Lk PIEEBY | schedule Il of the
Company
Act
Computers 3 years 3-6 years
@Iucc— Equipment 5 years 5 years
Ln niture and Fixtures 5 years 10 years
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

ihe property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s usefu! life or over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term

Ihe useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert which are higher than
rhose specified by Schedule 1l to the Companies Act; 2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The residual values
are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset.

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An
15581’ carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
entinidles recoverable amount

Gauts and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss
within other gains/(losses).

Impairment

(i) Fimancial assets {other than at fair value)
The Company assesses at each date of Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a greup of financial assets is impaired. Ind
AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected
losses for all contract assets and/or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. Fer all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an
amount equal to the Iife time expected credirt losses if the credit risk or the financial asset has increased significantiy since
initial recognition.

{it} Non-financial assets
Tangible and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets within finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable, If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount {i.e.
nignee of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does
nut generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determiried for the cash generating unit (CGUJ to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amaount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

m} Employee benefits

{i} Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the empioyees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
sittled. The liabilives are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The labilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expecied to be settled whoily within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected
fiture payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the
projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer setttement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is
expected to occur.

{iii) Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
{a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and
(b} defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

- Gratuity obfigations
The llability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension and gratuity plans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present vatue of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR 1s determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outfiows by reference to market yieids at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The benefits which are denominated in currency other than
INR, the cash flows are discounted using market yields determined by reference to high-guality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumgptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resuiting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The
Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted
for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments
is available.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are
vr paid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initialty at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs

Genpral and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of a gualifying
assel wre capitalised during the period of time that is reguired to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualiying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantiat period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[rvestment iIncome earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligibte for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred and are recognised in statement of Profit and loss.

Provisions

General

Froviswons are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
lur example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimpursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented In the statement of profit and loss net of any
remDursement.

Il the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting Is used, the increase In the provision due to the passage of time
is recogriised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A conungent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at
the tigher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount
nitially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue
recognition.

Contributed equity
I quity shares are classifled as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
eqully as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
enfity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributable to owners of the Company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in

equity shares issued during the year and

{ii}y Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- 1he after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with diiutive potential equity
the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Current/non current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet bhased on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated
15 current when it is’
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primariy for the purpose of trading
Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
“ashoor cashoeguivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
Al other asserts are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It i held primarily for the purpose of trading
It 15 due to be settled within'twelve months after the reporting period, or
There s no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reponting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivialents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash Flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
rash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
assoclated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
company are segregaled.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest rupee as per the requirement
of Schedule (11, unless otherwise stated.
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT |
(Amount in INR})

Particulars Computer Hardwares| Office Equipments Total

GROSS5 CARRYING VALUE

As at April 1, 2017 13,414,689 437,799 13,852,488

Aodihons 471,560 - 471,560

[Fisposals/Deletion (1,095,617} 2 {1,095,615)
As at March 31, 2018 12,790,632 437,801 13,228,433

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION/IMPAIRMENT

As at April 1, 2017 ’ 10,163,772 179,420 10,343,192

Deprecation for the year 2,073,107 211,680 2,284,787

Deductions\Adjustments during the periodideletion (1,095,614) (2) (1,095,616)
As at March 31, 2018 11,141,265 391,098 11,532,363
Net Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 1,649,367 46,703 1,696,070
Net Carrying value as at April 1, 2017 3,250,917 258,379 3,509,296
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

4. FINANCIAL ASSETS

=

{Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{A) LOANS
Non Current
Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated
Loans to Related Parties 6,700,000 6,700,000
Total 6,700,000 6,700,000
Current
Unsecured, considered-good unless otherwise stated
Loans to Employees - 38,659
Total - 38,659
(B) OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposits - 218,999
Less: Loss Allowances {35,000}
Total - 183,999
Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Security Deposits 3,902,011 4,468,012
Unbilled Revenue 32,911,160 30,557,746
Unbilled Revenue from Related parties - 14,446
Interest Accrued but not due from Related parties 118,360,530 102,317,358
Less: Loss Allowances (2,569,012) (2,709,012)
Total 152,604,689 134,648,550
5. INCOME TAX ]
(Amount in INR)
Particulars March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Fixed Assets 517,000 382,000
Expenses allowable on payment basis 13,824,000 9,947,000
Net Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities) 14,341,000 10,329,000
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Movement in deferred tax liabilities/assets

(Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Opening balance as of April 1 10,329,000 10,635,000
fax mcome/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 3,629,729 696,429
Tax income/(expense) during the periocd recognised in OCl 382,271 {1,006,429)
Closing balance as at March 31 14,341,000 10,329,000

Ine Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current

lax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority

Major Components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 are as follows:

i. Income tax recognised in profit or loss

(Amount in INR}

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Current income tax charge 2,130,000 2,207,000
Adjustment in respect of current iIncome tax of previous year {512,717} (244,321)
Deferred tax - -
#elating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,628,729) (696,429)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (2,012,446) 1,266,250

ii. Income tax recognised in OCI

{Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Net ioss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 382,271 (1,006,429}
Income tax expense recognised in OCI 382,271 {1,006,429) ‘

iii. Ameounts recognised directly in equity

(Amount in INR)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Agpregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited/{credited) to equity

Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by income tax rate for March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017

{Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit before tax as per IND AS 7,786,000 3,771,090
Adjusments:

Remeasurement of gains {losses) on defined benefit plans (1,178,213} 3,101,951
Accounting profit before income tax 6,607,787 6,873,041
Enacted tax rate in India 30.90% 30.90%
Income tax on accounting profits 2,041,806 2,123,770
Effect of
Depreciauen 135,888 302,085
Other non deductible expenses (1,203,228) 2,954,102
Expenditure allowable on payment basis 1,155,534 (2,862,957}
Adustment cof tax relating to earlier periods - {244,321)
Tax at effective income tax rate 2,130,000 2,272,679
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[6. OTHER ASSETS |
{Amount in INR})
| Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017 |
Non Current
Capital Advances - -
Others
- Payment of Taxes {Net of Provisions) 77,764,278 61,935,570
Total 77,764,278 61,935,570
Current
Advances other than Capital advances
- Advances to Related Parties 243,796,356 352,310,939
- Advances to creditors 285,367 185,125
- Other Advances 247,995 136,010
Others
\ - Prepaid expenses 850,955 410,145
- Balances with Statutory, Government Authorities 19,383,397 7,641,859
‘ Total 264,564,070 360,684,078
|7. TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Amount in INR)
| Particulars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
| Current
Trade Receivables from customers 32,608,841 29,220,593
Receivables from other related parties 2,375,774 3,491,863
Total 34,984,615 32,712,456
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Doubtful (4,055,691) (7,949,632)
{4,055,691) (7,949,632)
Total 30,928,923 24,762,824
|8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{Amount in INR)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with banks:
-Qn current accounts 31,315,640 10,557,006
Cash on hand -
Total 31,315,640 10,957,006
[9. OTHER BANK BALANCES i
(Amount in INR)
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Deposits with banks as security against borrowings -
Total - -
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[10. SHARE CAPITAL =
i. Authorised Share Capital {Amount in INR})
Equity Sh
Particulars Ly ars
Number Amount

At March 31, 2017 100,000 1,000,000

Increase/(decrease) during the year - -

At March 31, 2018 100,000 1,000,000

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Cirectors 1s subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

ii. Issued, subscribed and paid up capital {Amount in INR)

Particulars Number Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At March 31, 2017 100,000 1,000,000
Issued during the period - -
At March 31, 2018 100,000 1,000,000

iii. Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and / or their subsidiaries / associates
Out of equity issued by the company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/

associates are as below:

. At March 31, | At March 31,
Particulars
2018 2017
3uInfotech Limited {The Holding company} and by its nominees
Equity shares 100,000 100,000

iv. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

At March 31, 2018 At March 31, 2017
Name of the shareholder
Number % holding Number % holding
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
31 Infotech Limited (The Holding company) and by its nominees 100,000 100% 100,000 100%

v. No equity shares are issued as bonus , for consideration other than cash or bought back during the period of five years

inmediately preceeding the reporting date.
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[11. OTHER EQUITY

i. Reserves and Surplus

{Amount in INR}

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Securities Premium Reserve 507,475,152 507,475,152
Retained Earnings (102,095,470) {111,097,974})
Total 405,379,682 396,377,178

(a) Securities Premium Reserve

(Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Cpening balance 507,475,152 507,475,152
Add/{Less) - -
Closi'ng balance 507,475,152 507,475,152

(b) Retained Earnings

{Amount In INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Opening balance {111,057,974) (115,658,336)
Net Profit/{Loss) for the period 9,798,446 2,504,840
Add/{Less):

Items of Other Comprehensive Income directly recognised in Retained Earnings
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation, net of tax (795,542) 2,095,522
Closing balance {102,095,470) (111,097,974)
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[12. PROVISIONS

!

{Amount in INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Non Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 6,878,145 4,850,688
Leave encashment - -
Total 6,878,145 4,850,688
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 822,064 348,774
Leave encashment 698,557 698,521
Total 1,520,621 1,047,295
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[13. TRADE PAYABLES

-

(Amount in INR)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Current

Trade Payables to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Trade Payables to Related Parties 94,283,724 146,343,499
Trade Payables to Others 24,033,437 29,446,992
' Total 118,317,161 175,790,491
14, OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES J
(Amount in INR)
Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Non Current
Current
Financial Liabilities at amortised cost
Dues to employees 15,426,599 19,753,803
Total 15,426,599 19,753,803
[15. OTHER LIABILITIES |
{Amount in INR})
Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Non Current
Current
Advance received from Customers 15,273,773 4,897,555
Advance received from Related parties 1,087,661 1,087,661
Others
Statutory Liabilities 11,828,660 5,741,739
Others 3,202,369 3,202,572
Total 31,392,463 14,929,527

!-1‘
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

|16. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS |
{Amount in INR)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Sate of services
Transaction service 417,819,260 432,202,820
Total 417,819,260 432,202,820
[17. OTHER INCOME - i |
{Amount in INR)
[Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Interest income on

Loans to related parties 17,825,747 13,021,818

Others 2,033,132 5,169,192
Miscetlaneous thcome 158,793 (217,131}

Taotal 20,017,672 17,973,879
1B. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE |
{Amount in INR)

|Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Salaries, wages and bonus 193,794,465 226,654,322

Lontnbution to provident and other funds 23.568,699 26,208,327

Staff welfare expenses 2,914,748 3,415,328

Gratuity Expense 2,273,508 2,753,197

Recruitment and training expenses 126,191 516,679

Total 222,677,610 259,547,853

[19. COST OF THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS AND SERVICES |

{Amount in INR)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Cost of third party products / outsourced services

Service delivery to clients 164,047,407 131,176,717
| Total 164,047,407 131,176,717
[20. FiNANCE COST -1
{Amount in INR)
[Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Interest expense on debts and borrowings 150,575 (582,954)
Other borrowing costs
Others 87,054 348,272
Total 237,629 (234,682

24 of 42




31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[21. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

(Amount in INR)

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Oepreciation on tangible assets 2,284,787 4,065,563
Total 2,284,787 4,065,563
{Amount in INR)
[22. OTHER EXPENSES 2017-18 2016-17
Elecinc power, fuel and water 440,362 778,165
Insurance 1,124,427 994,160
Lagal and professional fees 6,252,136 3,387,189
Rates and taxes {425,618) 1,233,537
Remt 17,961,244 17,728,575
Hire Chargas 10,776,479 16,399,686
Repiirs and malintenance - Cthers 56,282 6,868
Telephone and internet expenses 1,630,524 1,307,528
Travelling & conveyance expenses 1,138,748 1,095,235
Allowance for doubtful debts and advances {261,699} 6,614,165
forepn exchange fluctuation loss 74,964 39,339
Mincellaneous expenses 2,035,650 2,265,711
Total 40,803,499 51,850,158
{a} Details of Payments to auditors {Amount in INR})
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
As auditor
Audit Fee 400,000 800,000
Tax audit fee 100,000 100,000
In other capacity
Re-imbursement of expenses - 15,340
Total 500,000 915,340
{b) Corporate social responsibllity expenditure
Ax per Section 135 of the Compames Act 2013 | the Company does not meet the applicability threshold . Hence the provision of the said
zaction are not applicable during the current financial year.
{c) Earnings in foreign currency (Amount in INR})
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Income from QOperations 1,169,400 2,115,135
Total 1,169,400 2,116,135

W
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

{Amount In INR)

h?articulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

| {a) Basic earnings per share

{b} Diluted earnings per share

Ve tfrmngs per shiare

luled Farhings per siive

Blidns

anviert Bl Bonds

98 25
98 25
(¢} Reconciliauans of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
dralit avtninutablie Lo the equily holders of the company used in calculating basic earnings per share 9,798,446 2,504,840
| praill avtrinutable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating diluted earnings per shire 9,798,446 2,504,840
(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Wipnied average aumber of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings per share 100,000 100,000
Adpuntmenis for calculation of diluted earnings per share:
Lonveruible Preference shares . -
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating dlluted earnings per share 100,000 100,000
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

|24‘ EVPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

]

{Amount In INR}

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Particulars
Current Non Current Total Current Non Current Total
Lizave obligatians 698 857 698,557 698,521 . 698,521
Gratuity 822,064 6,878,145 7.700.209 348,774 4,850,688 5,199,462
Uefined pension benefits - -
Total Employee Benefit Obligation 1,_520,621 6,878,145 8,398,766 1,047,295 4,850,688 5,897,983

{i} Leave Obligations

[l teave obligations cover the company's liability for sick and earned leave.

e amaount of the prowvision of INR 698,557 (March 31, 2017: INR 698,521) Is presented as current, since the company does aot have an
unconditional right 10 defer settlement for any of these obligations.

(i) Post Employement obligatlons
a) Gratuity

Thie company provides for gratuity for empioyees in india as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 Empioyees who are in continuous service
for a penod of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination 15 the employees last drawn basic

saiary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multipfied by number of years of service upto 10 years and 26 days salary
riitiphed by number of years of service beyond 11 years

i gratuily plan s a funded plan and the company makes contributions to recognised funds in india. The company does not fully fund the
habily and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

The amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movement In the net defined benefit obligation over the period are as follows

Present value of | Fair value of plan
Particulars i Net amount
obligation assets

As at April 1, 2017 5,199,462 - 5,199,462
Curreni service cost 1,885,021 1,889,021
naeresl expensi/iincome) 384,487 384,487
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 7,472,910 7,472,970
Remegsurements

Retrun of plan assets, excluding amount included in interest -

(income}

(Gan)/Loss from change in demographic assumptions 1,668,500 1,668,500

{Gani/Loss from change in financial assurmptions [148.636) {148,636)

fapienence (gans)/losses (341,651 1341,651)
Total amount recognised In other comprehensive income 1,178,213 - 1,178,213
Benefit payments {950,974) {950,974)
As at March 31, 2018 7,700,209 7,700,209
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

The net liabillty disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Amount in INR)

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Firesent value of funded cbligations 7.700,209 5,199,452
Fair vaiue of plan assets

Deficit of funded plan 7,700,209 5,199,462
Unfunded plans - -
Deficit of gratuity plan 7,700,209 5,199,462

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Particulars

March 31,2018

March 31, 2017

Discount rate 7.70% 7.40%
Expecied return on plan assets
Salary growth rate
Foor first 3 years 3.00% 3.00%
AT 3 years 2.00% 200%
Wilhdrawail rale
Jpto 4 years 52.48% 5. 00%
b oyears and above 10.594% 4.00%
Mortality rate 100% 100.00%

A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2018 is shown below:

Assurmptions

Discount rate

Salary prowth rate

Attrition rate

Senutivity Level

March 31, 2018

1% increase

1% decrease

1% increase

1% decrease

50% increase

50% decrease

fpact on defined benefit obligation 7,223,583 8,235,430 8,259,299 7,195,673 8,124,567 6,559,856
W impact -6.20% 7 00% 7.30% -6.60% 5.50% -14.80%
March 31, 2017

npacl en defined benefit obligation 4,675,347 5,827,174 5,855,120 4,646,359 5,679,417 4,458,750
W impact -10.10% 12.10% 12.60% -10.60% 9.20% -14.20%
Assumptions Mortality rate

Sensitivity Level

March 31, 2018
Impact on defined benefit obligatian

‘fmpact

March 31, 2017
impact on defined benefit obligation

v lmpact

10% increase

7,704,523

0.10%

5,208,009

020%

10% decrease

7,695,883

-0.10%

5,190,884

-0.20%

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined beenfit obligation as a result
of reasonable changes in key assumptions occuring at the end of the reparting period.

Since the schema is managed on unfunded basis, the next year contribution is nil.

It average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reponing periad is 7 years (March 31, 2017 11 years)
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3LINFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Expected cash flows over the next {valued on undiscounted basis) {Amount [n INR})
[Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
1 yoal 822,064 348,774
YOS yediy 4,032,693 1,545,786

Dol U yeaes 3,917,746 2,258,965

L Meie than 10 years 5,689,353 13,985,178

b} Defined pension benefits
[nsclosures would be same as given for Gratuity

{iii) Defined contribution plans

The company alse has defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic
salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the
company 5 limited te the amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor 2ny contructive obligation. The expense recognised during
the period towards defined contribution plan is INR 14,417,362 (March 31, 2017 INR 16,803,738)
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

|25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES ¥ |
{Amount in INR)

]

‘A. Commitments

i. Capital Commitments

-apital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Property, plant and equipment

ii. Leases
Operating lease commitments - Company as lessee

The company has various leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within a years. The leases have
varying terms, escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegotiated.
The company has paid INR 3,673,116 (March 31, 2016: INR 4,545,148 ) during the year towards minimurn lease payment.

Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non cancellable operating
‘eases are as follows
Within one year 525,389 1,300,602
Later than one year but not later than five years -
later than five years - '
525,389 1,300,601
(Amount in INR)
B. Contingent Liabilities March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
i. Claim agalnst the company not acknowledged as debt
{a) Disputed ESIC matter (including interest upto the date of demand} 547,402 547,402
(b) Disputed Income Tax matter {including interest upto the date of demand) 9,104,942 8,005,700
ii. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees
{a] Corporate Guarantee(Secured with first charge on all present and future movable| Not ascertainable | Not ascertainable
Assets {escept current assets) and secend charge on current assets of the Company has
beer created in favour of COR lenders of holding company as per Master Restructuring
Agreement(MRA) entered by the holding company with its COR lenders.)
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS |

(i) List of related parties as per the requirements of Ind-AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

|Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship  Country of Incerporation

Limited

Holding Company India
ftIntatech Saudi Arabia LLC Fellow Subsidiary Saudi Arabia
s infarech (Africa) Limited Fellow Subsidiary Kenya
Jiinfotech (Middle East) FZ LLC Fellow Subsidiary UAE
3 Inforech Holdings Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary Mauritius
3 Infotech {UK) Limited Fellow Subsidiary UK
“3iInfotech {Western Europe} Holdings Limited Fellow Subsidiary UK
Riiyme Systems Limited Fellow Subsidiary UK
Hiinfotect Financial Software tne. Fellow Subsidiary USA
31 Intotech Framework Limited Fellow Subsidiary UK
Frofessional Access Software Development Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary India
Locus Enterprise Solutions Limited Fellow Subsidiary India
duinfotect Consultancy Sennaices Limited Fellow Subisidiary India
infgtect Ing, Fellow Subisidiary USA
i1 Infotech Asia Pacific Pte Limited Feliow Subsidiary Singapore
Y intotech SDN BHD Fellow Subsidiary Malaysia
dvinfolech (Thailland) Limited Fellow Subsidiary Thailand
3i Infotech Services SDN BHD Fellow Subsidiary Malaysia
Black Barret Holdings Limited Fellow Subsidiary Cyprus
3/ infotech (Flagship-UK) Limited Fellow Subsidiary UK
Professional Access Limited {Upto 14th August, 2014) Fellow Subsidiary India
Stinfotech Qutsourcing Secvices Limied Fellow Subsidiary India
irinfotech Trusteeship Lumited {upto 15th October, 2015) Fellow Subsidiary India
Lorus INC Fellow Subsidiary Usa
I 5 Cloud Solution Ltd Fellow Subsidiary India
I fegon Infotech Limited Fetiow Subsidiary China

i Inforech South Africa (PTY} Limited

Fellow Subsidiary

Republic of South Africa

|?ey Managerial Personnal (KMP) :

Designation

Mr. Padmanabhan lyer Director
Mr. Ajay Kumar Director
Mr Sagar Thakurdesa: Director
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{ii) Transactions with related parties

Thie Tolowing transactions occurred with related parties

Amount in INR)

Name Nature of Relationship Nature of Transaction March 31, 2018 |March 31, ZDITJ
3i Infotech Limited Holding Company Income 8,288,142 6,843,909
Expenses [Corp charge o) 136,826,494 102,679,554
Expenses  Rent 15,600,000 [ 15,600,000 |
Interest income on advance given 17,825,747 12,083,818 ]
Advance given 20,588,760 71,965,052
3i Infotech Consultancy Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary Advance given - 1,633,000
Advance repaid 2,889,739 -
Ei infotech Inc Limited Fellow Subsidiary Income 1,090,892 1,672,592
Advance Repaid 1,134,078 -
3i Infotech Saudl Arabla LLC Fellow Subsidiary Income - 769,106
Advance Repaid 95,144
[ai Infotech {Middie East) FZ LLC Fellow Subsidiary Income 173,611

{fii) Qutstanding balances arislng from sales/purchases of goods and services

{Amount In INR)

Name Nature of Relationship March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2@
3i infotech Limited Holding Company j
Tiade payable 94,283,724 136,210,023
Interest recewable from advance 79,605,244 64,500,072 l
|Advance receivable 195,433,346 | 290,924,714 |
Wfotech Consultancy Services Limited Fellow Subsidiary

Advance receivable 48,363,010 | 51,252,749 |
3 Infotech inc Limlted Fellow Subsidiary ]
Trade receivable 1,134,078 ]
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{Amount In INR)

Name

Nature of Relationship

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

3i Infotech Saudi Arabia LLC
Tiade recevable

Unbilled ravenue

yance from Customer

Fellow Subsidiary

3i Infotech {Middle East) FZ LLC
Tragde Recerviables

Fellow Subsidiary

706,091 690,662

5 14,446
1,087,661 1,087,661
1,669,683 1,667,122

{iv) Loans to related parties

(Amount in INR)

Name

Nature of Relationship

Loans to /Interest recelvable from related partles

3i Infotech Limited

Holding Company

Particulars March 31, 2018 [March 31, 2017
Loan at Lthe beginning of the year 6,700,000 6,700,000
Loans advanced - -
Loan repaymenlts recoivend - -
Loan at the end of the year 6,700,000 6,700,000
Interest at the beginming of the year 37,817,286 36,879,286
Interest charged 938,000 938,000
Interest received - -
Interest recelvable at the end of the 38,755,286 37,817,286
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

[27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS |
i. Financial instruments by Category {Amount in INR)
. Carrying Amount Fair Value
Particulars
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amortised cost
Irade Recevabie q0.978.924 4, 161 B2 30048944 24,762,824
i &, Moo, Do i, 738,659 5, T, IDe0Ey b, 738,659
ach @t Cash Eguevalents 31,315,540 10,957,006 31,315.640 10,357,006
Cnhes Mank Balances 3 -
iR Fanandaal dayrds 151,504,689 134 83F G458 14 b, 680 134,832 549
B Total 221,549,253 177,291,038 221,549,253 177,291,038

[FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Amortised cost
vt Payanies 118,317,161 1 75, 130,491 LIB ALY 16 175,790,491
(Fier hinancial liabibites 15,426,599 109,753,803 15 426,599 15,753,803

| Totl 133,743,760 195,544,294 133,743,760 195,544,294

e rmam et assessnd it the Gl clilue o Cash ang sath srpevalenl, Vi ade receivables. trade gavebles snd etfen corent fimancal avsels and

sblitas dpproaEmate BHer carsyeng amaunts [dopely due to e sharl term matudities of these insuumensts

I Bt wabiies 100 l0ais seculity depodity s investnments in preference-shares were caltulated based oo cash Rows docounied using B current
Weanieeg abe ey e classified as level 318w values in fhe P value higrarchy due to the snclusion of weobservsbie inputs ingiuding counterparry
Ll ree

The lair values of aon current borcowings sra based on discounter! cash Bows eang A cwrent boerawing rale They are cassified as ievel 3 fair
withues ot The fue value fieranchy dus (o the use of unobservable inputs, including awn oreddl rek
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31 INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

ii. Fair Value Hierarchy
This wecteen explaan 1he judgements gl estirmated made 0 determaung thie far values of the hinane sl instrements that are racagnised and measure at far value. To
Oy 81 RCMIOT sboul the reiiabidity of the inputs used 0 detenmang T velue. The company has clagsdeed i fnmmcial instruments into theee levels prescribed

wodal Ly Blownling Standard. As ergl@nativn ol each evel follows underneath The table:

Assets and liabillties measured at falr value - recurring fair value measurement: {Amount in INR)
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Falr value measurement using Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices |' Significant Significant Quoted prices in Significant Significant
Particulars in active Observable | Unobservable Total active markets Observable Unobservable Total
markets ‘ inputs inputs {Level 1) Inputs Inputs
[Level 1) [Level 2) ({Level 3) {Level 2) {Level 3)
+ _
Financial Assets |
sani - - - - - - 38,659 34,659
lomeertty defaosits . - 3,902,011 3,502,011 - - 4,667,011 4,687.011
Iotal Financial Assets - | 3,902,011 3,902,011 = 3 | - 4,725,670 4,725,670
Foancial Liabiilties
Hustpwing - = -
Total Financial Liabllitles - - . s i T . .

There nave been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level! 3 during the period
Level 1 tewel 1 fprarcty iocludes Quoted {unadjusted} prces 0 active markets for identical assets ur lalahities
Level 2 - fne Tair value of financial iwstiurments thet are not trades inoan active market {for exmmple, Uaded bonds, eve: the counter demyatives) is determined using

vatvation techmques which maxirmise use of observable market dia and rely as litile as possitile on entity speafic esumaes I all significant inputs required (o fair
vatut dn aigtrument ace pbservable, the mstrument o included m level 2

Level 3 - f one or more of the significant mputs are not based on gbservable market data, the instrurmend (v Incwded an lewzl 3 This is the case for unlisted equity
ihares, contingenl consideration and indemmification assety incuded in level 3,

lii. Valuation technlque used to determéne falr valua
spenfic Valuation Techimigues used 16 value fingnclal instruments incloude:
Mee e of puoted markil prces of dealer gueles for similar ingtremaents
e tair value of the remmning finanoal instruments |2 deterrmined using discaunted cash fiow analysis

vi. Valugtion processes
P dmance depastmant of the company includes 3 team that performs the valualions of financial susets and Kabilines required for financial reporting purposes,

TR team vty dieedty 4 the el fmannal offices |CF0! pod the aodic committte Discussons of valualion processes and results are

udivig Yool 1 Lair va

wld netween the CF0, AC and the vatuation tegm at least once every threg months, in ine with Comgany's quarterly feporteg perads.
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|28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Campany is exposed primarily 10 flugtuations in foreign currency exchange rates ,credit liguidity and Interest rate risk,which may
adversely impact the fair value of its financial Instruments. The Company has a risk management policy which covers risks associated with
tne financial assets and liabilities . The risk management policy is approved by Board of Directors. The focus of the risk management
commitee 1s 10 assess the unpredictabibty of the financial environment and to mitigate polential adverse effects on the financial
pedfgimance of the Company.

i. Market Risk

Market risk [= the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuatle because of the change in market
prices . Such changes in the value of financial instruments may result from changes in the farelgn currency exchange, interest rates ,credit
Jiguidity and other market changes. The Company's exposure 10 market risk Is primarily on account of foreign currency exchange rate
risk

{a) Forelgn currency exchange rate risk

The Nuctuation in foresgn currency exchange rate may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and the other
camprehensive income and equity  where any transaction reference more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated
In a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

Considenng the countries and the economic environment in which the Company operates, its opesations are subject to risk arising from
fluctuations In exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily celates 10 fluctuations in US Dollar, Great Britain Pound and Euro
wamst the functional currency of the Company.

The Comnpany , as per its current risk management policy ,does not use any derivatives insiruments o hedge foreign exchange . Further

L,any movement in the funcuianal currency of the various operations of the Company against major loreign currencies may impacl the
Campany's revenue ininternational business.

ihe Company evaluates the impact of the forzign exchange rate fluctuation by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks. Apart from
exposures of foreign currency payable: and receivables, which partially are naturally hedged against each other, the Company does not
use any hedging instruments Lo hedge its foreign currency exposures; in hne with the current risk managernent policies.

The loreign exchange rate sensitivily 15 calculated by aggregation of the net foreign exchangs rate exposure and a simultaneous parallel
foreign euchange rate shift af all the currencies by 1% against the functional currency of the Company

'ni toliowing analysis has been worked oui based on Lhe net exposures of the Company as of the date of Balance Sheet which could
affect the statement of profit and loss and the other comprehensive iIncome and equity -

The following table set forth information relating to foretgn currency exposure as at March 31,2018;

[Amountin INR )
Particulars usD GBP EUR Total
Total financial assets 1,288,113 - - 1.288,113

1% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the Company would result in
decrease fincrease in 1he Company ‘s profit before 1ax by approximately INR 12,881 for the year ended March 31,2018

The tallowing Lakdle sets forth information relating 1o foreign currency exposure as al March 31, 2017:

(Amount in INR )
Particutars UsD GBP EUR Total
Fotal limancial assels 2,218,647 2,418,647

i*% npprreciauon/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currracy of the Company would result in
decrease /increase in the Comparny 's profit before tax by approximately INR 24,186 for the year ended March 31,2017
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3I' INFOTECH BPO LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{b)Interest rate risk

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not sulyect to interest rate risk as defined in Ing
AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nos the future cash Tows will fluctuate because ol a change n marke!.

(i} Credit rlsk

Credil nsk s the risk that the counterparty will nol meet its obligations leading 10 a financial loss. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
iy imvestments cariied 21 amortised cost and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
vincluding putsianding recevabliss and unbiiled revenues.

Clusiorn

{1) Credit risk management

- Trade receivables and Unbilled revenues

Credu risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously menitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

&4 a practical expedient. the Company uses a provision matriz 1o determine impairment loss allowance on pertfolio of its trade
recevables and unbilied revenue. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expecled life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, Lhe historical observed default rates are updated
anigd changes in the forward-looking vstimates are analyzed.

- Other Financalls Assets

The cornpany considers the probability of default upen initial recognltion of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in
retdll vk onoan ongaing 0asis throughout each reportng persod. To assess whether Lhere is 2 significant increase in credit risk the

company cormpares the risk of a default occurring on the assel as al the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial

recogmilien 1L considers available reatonable and supporlive forwarding-looking information

A defaull on a hinanclal 2sset is when Lhe counterparty fails to make contractual payments when they fall due. This definition of default is
determined by considering the business environment in which entily operates and othe: macre ecanomic faclors.

(2) Credlt risk exposure
- Trade recelvables and Unbilled revenues

ihe cacrying amount of Lrade receivables and unbilled revenues represents the maximum credit exgosure from customers. The maximum
eXpoUre 10 credn nsk from customers is INR 67,895,775 Iadarch 31, 2017 . INR 63,281,647 ). The lifelime expected credit loss on
customer halance for the yvear ended March 31, 2018 is INR 4,055,692 {March 31, 2017 : INH 7,949,631).

Reconclliation of loss allowance provision - Trade recelvables and Unbilled revenue
{Amount in INR})

Particulars March 31, 2018) March 31, 2017
Balance at the beginning %4 7.949.632 1,335,467
hnpesrment loss recognised/reversed i (3,893,940} 6,614,165
Balance at the end r 4,055,691 7,949,632

- Other Financial Assels

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, investments carried at amortised cost, deposits with banks and financial institutions
and other financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure 10 credit risk is INR 160,278,181 [March 31,
2017 INR 124,700,034). The 12 months expected credit loss and lifetime expected credit 10ss on these financial assets for the year ended
March 31, 2018 is INR 2,569,012 (March 31, 2017. INR 2,744,012 )
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Reconclliatlon of loss allowance provision - other financial assets

{Amount In INR)

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
12 month life-time 12 month lit% time
expected losses expected losses| expected losses S
losses
Balance at the beginning 2,744 012 2,744,012
AddiLess) Changes in ioss allowances due 1o
Changes in risk paramelers (175,000} -
Balance at the end 2,569,012 2,744,012

{iii} Liquidity risks

Ligladity risk relers 1o the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liguidity nsk management is to
maintan sufficient liguidity and ensure that funds are availabie for use as per reguirements.

The Company consisiently generated sufficient cash flow from operations 1o meet its financial obligation as and when they fall due .

Thit 1able below provides detalls regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as a1 :

March 31, 2018

{Amount in INR)

Due after 5
Due in 1 year | Due In 1-2 year | Due In 2-5 year Total
years
Non-derivative financlal liabllities :
Trade and other pavables 118,317,161 118,317,161
Other financial Liabilivies 15,426,599 15,426,599
Total 133,743,760 133,743,760
March 31, 2017 {Amount In INR})
Due after &
Duein 1 year [ Duein 1-2 year | Duein 2-5 year u:ears Total

Non-derlvative financial Habilities :

Trade and other payables 175,790,491 - 175,790,491
Other inancral habilties 19,753,803 19,753,803
Total 195,544,294 - - 195,544,294
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{Amount In INR)

[29. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY |
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non current borrowings of Holding Company :
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
CURRENT ASSETS
|. Financial Assets
lrade Becewables 30,928,924 24,762,824
Yol cash and Cash Eguivalents 31,315,640 10,957,006
| Hank Balances Other than {ii) above - -
fw) Loans - 38,659
{v) Uther Financial Assets 152,604,689 134,648,550
ii. Non Financial Assets
Other Current Assels ) 264,564,070 360,684,078
Total current assets pledge as security 479,413,323 531,091,116
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Lomputer Hardwares 1,649,367 3,250,917
Qtfice T guipments 46,703 258,379
Total non current assets pledge as security 1,696,070 3,509,296
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{Amount In INR)
|30. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES I

The fallowing table presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset and other agreements but not offset, as 2t March 31, 2018 and March 31,
[0 The column ‘net amount’ shows the impact on the company’s balance sheet if all set-off rights were exercised.

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet Related amounts not offset
Gross amounts Net amount Amounts subjects Financlal
Gross amount set off in the presented in the | to master netting Instruments Net amount
balance sheet balance sheet arrangements collateral
Narch 31, 2018
Finanhcial assets
lradi recewanles 33,558.034 (3,039,111} 30,928,924 (30,928.924)
LR A 4,702,011 {800,000} 3,902,011 | (3,902,011)
Total 38,670,045 {3,839,111) 34,830,935 (30,928,924}
Financial liabilities
Trace Payables 122,156,272 3,839,111 118,317,161 118,317,161
latal 122,156,272 3,839,111 118,317,161 118,317,161
|
|Waccn 31, 2017
fiancial assets
by recvivables 28,233,228 (3,470,404) 24,762,824 (24,762,824)
Tolal 28,233,228 (3,470,404} 24,762,824 (24,762,824} -
Financial tiabilities
Bo I 178,879,610 3.089.119 175,790,491 175,790,491
1y I Papyaie 381,285 381,285 - -
Total 179,260,895 3,470,404 175,790,491 - 175,790,491
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{Amount in INR})

[31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

|

i the puipose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all other

TN e

Farghoider value

- QvEnanty

154N

it ibutable to the equity holders of the parent The primary objective of the Tompany's capital management Is to maximise the

Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustrments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the finandial
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharehoiders, return capital to shareholders or
new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes

wiltur debl. interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other pavables, less cash and cash equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Trade payablet
Diher yayaiies

st and cash equivalents
Met Debt
Exjuty
irotal Capital

Capital and net debt
Gearng ralio

118,317,161
46,819,062
(31.315,640)

175,790,491
34,683,330
{10,957,006)

133,820,583 199,516,815
406,379,682 397,377,178
406,379,682 357,377,178
540,200,265 596,893,993

25 33
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{Amount In INR}
32. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
DEVELOPMENT ALT, 2006 (MSMED ACT, 2006)

Particulars ] March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006*

Interast accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the above amount -

Fayment made 1o suppliers ( other than interest | beyond the appointed day, during the
yaar

el pantd 10 suppliees under MSBED Act, | other than Secton 16}
erest paid 1o suppliers under MSMED Act, { Section 16 ) -

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already made

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED -
Act, 2006 -

* Amount includes due and unpaid of INR Nil (March 31, 2017: INR Nil)

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro and Small*
enterprises on the tasis of informatian avdilable with the Company.

33. The accounts of certain Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Loans and Advances and Banks are however, subject to formal
confirmations / reconciliations and consequent adjustments, if any. However, the management does not expect any material
difference affecting the current years financial statements en such reconciliations / adjustments

34 Effective Aprdl, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statement to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financial activities, ncluding toth charges
arising from cash flows and non cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a recenciliation between the opening and closing balances
in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financial activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The adoption of
amendment does not have any material impact on the financial statements.

35. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued in February 2016 and estabiishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
custorners Under Ind AS 115 revenue 1s 1ecognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitied in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The new revenue standard will supersede all current
revenue reccgnition requirements under Ind AS. This standard will come into force from accounting period commencing on or
after April 1, 2018. The Cormpany will adopt the new standard on the required effective date.

> Frevious year's figures have been regrouped / rearrangwe_reve: necessary to conform to the current year's presentation.

Ajay Kular
Director
DIN:07652605

Navi Mumbai
Date : April 20,2018

Navi Mumbal
Date : April 20,2018
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